ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS' AFFAI RS
March 17, 2005
1: 07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative JimElkins
Representative Lesil MQiire
Representative Bill Thonmas
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 90
"An Act relating to Al aska Territorial Guard Day."

- MOVED HB 90 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 122
"An Act relating to paynment of premuns for Service nenbers'
G oup Life Insurance on behalf of nenbers of the Al aska Nati onal
Guard deployed to a conbat zone; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED CSHB 122(M.V) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 201
"An Act relating to an application for a permanent fund dividend
for a nenber of the armed forces of the United States serving on
active duty outside of the state; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED HB 201 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 181
"An Act establishing a waiver for active duty mlitary service
of continuing education requirenents for renewal of occupational
licenses.”

- MOVED CSHB 181(M.V) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 168

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- March 17, 2005



"An Act relating to receipt of incone by an Al aska Pioneers'
Home or Al aska Veterans' Hone resident."”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 167
"An Act relating to providing a death certificate for a deceased
veteran w thout cost."

- MOVED CSHB 167(M.V) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 166
"An Act relating to a program to honor a deceased veteran's
mlitary service."

- MOVED CSHB 166(M.V) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 168
"An Act relating to receipt of income by an Al aska Pioneers'
Home or Al aska Veterans' Hone resident."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOWM TTEE
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 90

SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA TERRI TORI AL GUARD DAY
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) HUGG NS

02/ 04/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 04/ 05 (S) STA

02/ 17/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 17/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB 90(STA) Qut of Committee

02/ 17/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 18/ 05 (S) STA RPT cs 4DP
SAME TI TLE

02/ 18/ 05 (S) LETTER OF | NTENT W TH STA REPORT

02/ 18/ 05 (S) DP; THERRI AULT, ELTON, WAGONER, HUGG NS

02/ 23/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 23/ 05 (S) VERSI ON: CSSB 90( STA)

02/ 24/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 24/ 05 (H) MV, STA

03/ 17/ 05 (H) MLV AT 1:00 PM CAP| TOL 124

BILL: HB 122
SHORT TITLE: LIFE | NSURANCE FOR NATI ONAL GUARD
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) DAHLSTROM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- March 17, 2005



02/ 02/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 05 (H MV, L&C, FIN

02/ 02/ 05 (H) L&C REFERRAL REMOVED

02/ 17/ 05 (H) MLV AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 17/ 05 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 17/ 05 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

03/ 17/ 05 (H MLV AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 201

SHORT TI TLE: PERM FUND DI VI DEND APPS OF M LI TARY
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) CHENAULT

03/ 04/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 05 (H MV, STA

03/ 17/ 05 (H MLV AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 181

SHORT TITLE: WAl VE CONTI NUI NG EDUC. REQ FOR M LI TARY
SPONSOR(S) :  REPRESENTATI VE('S) COGHI LL

02/ 28/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 28/ 05 (H) MV, L&C

03/ 17/ 05 (H) MLV AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 168

SHORT TI TLE: VETS /Pl ONEERS' HOVES RESI DENTS' | NCOVE
SPONSOR(S): M LI TARY & VETERANS' AFFAI RS

02/ 22/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 05 (H MV, STA
03/ 17/ 05 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 167
SHORT TI TLE: DEATH CERTI FI CATE FOR DECEASED VETERAN
SPONSOR(S): M LI TARY & VETERANS' AFFAI RS

02/ 22/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 05 (H MV, STA
03/ 17/ 05 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 166
SHORT TI TLE: VETERANS' MEMORI AL CERTI FI CATES
SPONSOR(S): M LI TARY & VETERANS' AFFAI RS

02/ 22/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 05 (H M.V, STA

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2005



03/ 17/ 05 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR CHARLI E HUGAE NS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 90 as sponsor.

RYAN MOORE, St aff

to Senator Charlie Huggins

Al aska State Legislature

PCOSI TION STATEMENT: Presented SB 90 on behalf of Senator
Huggi ns, sponsor.

KELLY HUBER, St aff

to Representative Nancy Dahl strom

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 122 on behal f of Representative
Dahl strom sponsor.

ERI CH DELAND, St aff

to Representative M ke Chenault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 201 on behal f of Representative
Chenaul t, sponsor.

SHARON BARTON, Director

Per manent Fund D vi dend Di vi si on

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 201.

KAREN LI DSTER, St aff

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 181 on behal f of Representative
Coghi I I, sponsor.

SARAH HOCK, St aff

to Representative Max G uenberg
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 167 and HB 166 on behal f of
Represent ati ve Gruenberg, sponsor.

EDWARD C. FERMAN, Veteran
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of veterans.

PHI LLI P M TCHELL, Section Chief

Bureau of Vital Statistics

Di vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Made suggestions to HB 167.

JERRY BEALE, Director

Ofice of Veteran Affairs

Department of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 167.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House Special Committee on Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 1:07:37 PM
Representatives Lynn, Elkins, Thomas, and G uenberg were present
at the call to order. Representatives MQ@ire and GCissna
arrived while the nmeeting was in progress.

SB  90- ALASKA TERRI TORI AL GUARD DAY

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 90 "An Act relating to Alaska Territorial QGuard
Day. "

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGGE NS, Alaska State Legislature, said his
staff person Ryan Moore put this bill together.

RYAN MOORE, Staff to Senator Charlie Huggins, Alaska State
Legi slature, said after the attacks on Pearl Harbor during Wrld
War || the Japanese bonbed Attu and Kiska Islands in Al aska, and
Al aska realized the need for a territorial guard. Senat or
Grueni ng assenbl ed about 6,500 predom nantly Alaska Natives who
served on the Alaska Territorial Guard from 1942 until 1947.
Many went on to the Al aska National Guard, he said. I n Cctober
2004, nenbers of the Alaska Territorial Guard were recogni zed by
the United States Arny as veterans. HB 90 establishes Cctober
18th as Al aska Territorial CGuard Day.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2005



SENATOR HUGA NS said he once worked for Al aska's Departnent of
Mlitary and Veterans Affairs and was part of the task to
recogni ze guard nenbers. Representative Carl Mses was a
territorial guard nenber, he said. Three past guards died
during this process. There were twenty-three left at that
point, and Senator Huggins said he sent those nanes to the
mlitary, which refused to deal with it. It took over a year to
get them to open the envelope, he added. "Now we have an
opportunity to have a day that's dedicated to the recognition of
the contribution of those over 6,500 great Al askans," he said.

1:15:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS noved SB 90, Version 24-LS0459\| from
commttee wth individual reconmendati ons. Hearing no
objection, it was so ordered.

1:15:49 PM

HB 122-L1 FE | NSURANCE FOR NATI ONAL GUARD

CHAIR LYNN announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 122 "An Act relating to paynent of premuns for
Servi cenmenbers' G oup Life Insurance on behalf of nmenbers of the
Al aska National Guard deployed to a conbat zone; and providing
for an effective date.”

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS noved to adopt CSHB 122, Version 24-
LS0446\ X, Bullock, 3/17/05, as a work draft. There being no
obj ection, Version X was before the commttee.

KELLY HUBER, Staff to Representative Dahlstrom Alaska State
Legislature, said that this is the second day that HB 122 has
been before the House Special Committee on Mlitary and
Vet erans' Affairs. It was a couple of weeks ago that it was
i ntroduced, she said, and it just dealt with the state paying
for life insurance premuns for National Guard nenbers depl oyed
to a conbat zone. The discussion in this conmttee created the
committee substitute (CS), and it goes further than just life
i nsurance, she said.

M5. HUBER said there will be 300 people affected by HB 122, and

the cost will be about $56,000. The bill wll allow a guard
menber to get out of a cellular phone or notor |ease contract.
The bill also gives nenbers tine to pay utilities, it gives them

defernents on state loans, and if the nenber is enrolled in a

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2005



university, the university nust accommbdate them wth no
penalties when they return. The bill also allows Al aska
Department of Fish & Gane sport permts to be put on hold unti
guard menbers return from conbat duty.

CHAIR LYNN asked for nore clarification on the | oans.

M5. HUBER said the notor |eases and cellul ar phone contracts can
be term nated w thout penalty. She said other states are doing
the same, and it benefits the guard nenber or spouse if the
paynent will be a hardship.

1: 23: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if anyone else is going to
testify on this. CGenerally, soneone could termnate a contract
anyway, W thout penalty, he said. He said he thinks the bil
attenpts to say, "This does not relieve you of the duty of
payi ng any back paynments that you've m ssed.”

1: 25: 48 PM

M5. HUBER said it is fine with the sponsor to clarify that
| anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG offered Concept ual Amendmrent 1
[l anguage woul d be inserted to relate the following]: "that you
can termnate wthout having to pay anything additional, but
this doesn't relieve you of the duty to pay the anobunts past
due. "

1:26: 26 PM

M5. HUBER said the commttee needs to decide this.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said this can be read as stating that
one cannot termnate the contract unless, prior to termnation

what is owed is paid. It becomes a condition of the
term nation, he said.

CHAIR LYNN said debts wuld not accumul ate after t he
termnation, but the person would still owe any previous bal ance
due.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "That is exactly ny intent."

Hearing no objection to Conceptual Amendnent 1, it was adopt ed.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE THOMAS asked M. Huber about his previous
suggestion of encouraging nunicipalities to nake exenptions
dealing with property taxes.

M5. HUBER said the problem was trying to figure out who would
pay. If the municipalities were going to pay, they would need
to be invited in on the discussions, she added.

1: 31: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOMAS said maybe it is nore of a resolution
encouraging nunicipalities to look at giving guard nenbers a
property exenption. "I would hate to see a soldier go
bankrupt," he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the federal Soldiers and Sailors
Relief Act requires that before any action is taken against
service nmenbers on active duty, an attorney be appointed to them
to advise themof their rights.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered Conceptual Anendnent 2 to
delete the word "actual", on line 17, of page 2, because the
word is not necessary. Hearing no objection, Conceptua
Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

1: 33: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said page 2, |lines 25-26, say that the
institution of higher |learning should grant the nenber a
mlitary | eave of absence. "I could see a non-caretaker nenber
getting deployed Ileaving the spouse wth full chil dcare
responsi bilities, and being unable to continue their education.”

CHAI R LYNN suggested using the term"mlitary dependent” instead
of "spouse".

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG noved that the commttee adopt
Conceptual Amendnent 3, as foll ows:

Page 2, line 25, after "nenber"
Insert "and mlitary dependent™

Hearing no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 3 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the wutility paynent
defernments need a test of hardship. He said if he had an 18-

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2005



year-old in the National Guard on active duty, and he had plenty
of noney, "I could get out of paying this for all the tinme ny
son was on active duty."

CHAI R LYNN sai d he doesn't want a needs test.

M5. HUBER said the sponsor would be concerned about who would
det erm ne the hardship.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said they should have to nmke an
application to the conpany.

1: 38: 00 PM

M5. HUBER said the sponsor wants the bill noved out of comittee
today, but not have it read across the House floor wuntil
settling the details with Representative G uenberg.

CHAI R LYNN said he wants to nove good bills.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that this is the only
commttee, except for the House Finance Commttee that wll hear
HB 122.

1:40: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would |ike copies of the [CS
i ncorporating the changes fromthis neeting] to be given to the
nmenbers. He added that on page 3, line 4, the term "or other
heating fuel"” needs to be inserted t=on line 5. He offered the
af orenenti oned as Amendnent 4.

CHAI R LYNN, upon hearing no objection, announced that Amendnent
4 was adopt ed.

The conmttee took an at-ease from1:42 p.m to 1:45 p. m
REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report CSHB 122, Version 24-
LS0446\ X, Bullock, 3/17/05, as anended out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested that the notion be w thdrawn.

CHAIR LYNN announced that the aforenentioned notion was
wi t hdr awn.

1:45: 42 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -9- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he forgot to rempve "actual"™ from
line 21 "and | would ask that that technically be incorporated
into Anmendnment 2." He said there was also a question about
fishing |icenses.

M5. HUBER said that could be worked into subsection (e); if not,
it is something that the sponsor can review.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS said he thinks [the conmmercial fishing
license idea] is inportant. "When a young nman nmakes that
conmmitment to buy a boat and permt, that's quite a bit of
debt,"” he said.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA related her disconfort. She said
although it is a wonderful piece of legislation, she said she
wants to make sure that guard nenbers are covered if things go
W ong. She expressed concern that there are other things, just
like limted entry, that have not yet been thought about.

1:49: 14 PM

M5. HUBER said the sponsor has worked with Representatives
Thomas and El ki ns, and she wants to nove it out today.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA said she supposed the sponsor will accept
fl oor amendnents if she thought of additional itenms for HB 122.

CHAIR LYNN said he would like to nove it because there are
servi ce people who could benefit now.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there is a reason that M.
Huber wanted an inmmedi ate effective date rather than the nornal
peri od.

CHAIR LYNN said there are troops depl oyed "as we speak."

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report CSHB 122, Version 24-
LS0446\ X, Bullock, 3/17/05, as anended out of commttee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 122(M.V) was reported out of the
House Special Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

HB 201- PERM FUND DI VI DEND APPS OF M LI TARY

1: 52: 01 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 10- March 17, 2005



CHAIR LYNN announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 201 "An Act relating to an application for a
per manent fund dividend for a nenber of the arned forces of the
United States serving on active duty outside of the state; and
providing for an effective date."

ERICH DELAND, Staff to Representative M ke Chenault, Al aska
State Legislature, said that sonme Al askans in Iraq cannot sign
their Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD) application, and "their
famlies back home are hurting.” This bill allows a person who
has the power of attorney for the one serving in Iraq to sign
t he applicati on.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked who gets the check if nore than
one person has the power of attorney.

1:54:19 PM

SHARON BARTON, D rector, Permanent Fund D vidend Division,
Department of Revenue, said the departnent would honor anyone
that has a power of attorney.

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG asked how the departnent will
di stingui sh between duplicate applications.

M5. BARTON said the departnment would send one check to the
address for the recipient. She added that the powers of
attorney are only used now for disabled applicants. The address
of the applicant will be on file.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE said sonmeone with power of attorney can
change the address to where the PFD check is sent. Di vor ced
famlies, with noney comng to children, may run into a problem

1:57:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the departnment probably has the
regul atory authority to resolve such issues, and the |egislature
should not get into the details. But when the regulation is
witten, that issue should be specifically addressed, he said.

1:57: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the problem may be exasperated
W th previous spouses and conpeting heirs.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2005



M5. BARTON said she could address it in the regulatory process

She added that she has heard of the problens of mlitary
personnel accessing conputers and nail. She said the departnent
has gone to the mlitary bases to give infornmation.

1: 59: 37 PM

M5. BARTON said the filing period was extended for 90 days after
a person has been eligible for hostile fire or immnent danger
pay. The comm ssioner has executed a waiver from the 72-hour
rule for any mlitary nenber, who, because of the national
energency, cannot nake it back for those 72 hours in the past
two years. As it stands now, she said, a power of attorney can
file an application for a mlitary person, but cannot sign it.

2:01:49 PM

M5. BARTON said that partnerships have hel ped. Commandi ng
officers gave all 129 soldiers applications, and assisted in
getting them filed. She said she is training her staff to
provi de good service to deployed mlitary. She suggested that
HB 201 be I|imted to people in conbat zones; ot her

servi cenenbers have ready access to nail and internet, she said.
2:04: 27 PM

CHAIR LYNN said there are other places where people are
stationed that aren't convenient for filing.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS noved to report [HB 201] out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. Hearing no objection, HB 201 was noved out of the House
Special Committee on MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

HB 181- WAI VE CONTI NUI NG EDUC. REQ FOR M LI TARY

2:05:50 PM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 181 "An Act establishing a waiver for active duty
mlitary service of continuing education requirenents for
renewal of occupational |icenses.™

KAREN LIDSTER, staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, said there is a conmttee substitute (CS) to
HB 181, and she read the sponsor's statenent (origina
punct uati on provided):

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2005



This legislation is introduced to elimnate the
possibility of a professional |icensee losing his or
her |icense because of failure to fulfill statutory
requi renents for continuing education while serving on
active duty in a conbat zone or area where continuing
education classes are not avail abl e.

Many professional license holders are also nenbers of
reserve or auxiliary conponents of the armed forces
When deployed to a conmbat zone or area where classes
are not available, they no |longer have the ability to
fulfill the education requirenents to maintain their
specific license, registration, permt or certificate.

HB 181 provides a waiver of the educati onal
requi renents and allows the license holder to return
to Alaska and have an extended period of tinme to
fulfill the continuing education requirenents w thout
losing their license for non-conpliance.

IVB. LIDSTER said the Division of Occupational Li censi ng
recoomended leaving the waiver decision to the departnent
i nstead of individual boards. The CS reflects that change, she

sai d. The House Special Conmttee on Mlitary and Veterans'
Affairs changed the term "active duty mlitary" to be nore
specific of who will be covered under the bill.

2:09: 20 PM

M5. LIDSTER said that people in renote areas will be covered as

well as those in conbat zones.
2:10: 13 PM

CHAIR LYNN said people in staging areas and training facilities
may find it inpossible to do their continuing education, and he
asked if there is a requirenent for catching up

M5. LIDSTER said people in staging or training areas wll be
covered. She added that the departnent will determ ne how the
wai ver will work for specific |icenses.

CHAIR LYNN said sone courses are an aggravation. There wll be

new courses on top of the ones mssed, and a person m ght not
ever catch up

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 13- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he appreciates the intent of the

bill but has serious concerns about how it wll play out. He
said licensing boards are very different, and the legislature
should hear from each of them He added that the state bar
cannot be regulated by the |legislature, making the bil

unconstitutional. Many requirenents can be done online, and
there is the question of catching up, he said. It is a far
reaching bill, particularly with healthcare where people's lives
could be at stake. "It is essential that we just not totally

wai ve everybody's continui ng education requirenent,"” he said.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS said a doctor who enlists will not "pack a
rifle." Soneone in a professional field will continue to stay
in that field.

2:16: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said the |egislature does not have mnuch
control over licensing institutions, but it does have sone input
with the University of Al aska and sone trade school s.

M5. LIDSTER said those are good points, and she will work with
comittee nenbers on a CS.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he could support the original bil
with Anendnent 1 as foll ows:

Page 1, line 14, after "and"
| nsert "nmay"

Hearing no objection, Amendnent 1 to the original HB 181 was so
noved.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of f ered Anendnent 2 as foll ows:

Page 2, line 1, delete "active duty mlitary service"
Insert ""reserve or auxiliary menber" nmeans a nmenber
of a reserve or auxiliary conmponent of the arned
forces of the United States, including the organized
mlitia of the stat, consisting of the Al aska Nationa
Guard, the Alaska Naval Mlitia, and the Al aska State
Def ense Force, and who is called to active duty by the
appropriate state of federal authority"”

Page 2, line 16, delete "active duty mlitary service"
Insert ""reserve or auxiliary menber" neans a nenber
of a reserve or auxiliary conmponent of the arned

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -14- March 17, 2005



forces of the United States, including the organized
mlitia of the stat, consisting of the Al aska Nationa
GQuard, the Alaska Naval Mlitia, and the Al aska State
Def ense Force, and who is called to active duty by the
appropriate state of federal authority"”

Hearing no objection, Anendnent 2 to the original HB 181 was so
noved.

2:20: 39 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of f ered Anendment 3 as fol |l ows:

Page 2, line 14, delete "shall™
| nsert "nmay"

Hearing no objection, Amendnent 3 to the original HB 181 was so
noved.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HB 181, version 24-
LS0685\ A, as anended out of conmmittee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. Hearing no
objection, CSHB 181(M.V) was noved out of the House Speci al
Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

HB 168- VETS' / PI ONEERS' HOMVES RESI DENTS' | NCOVE

2:22:15 PM

CHAIR LYNN said HB 168 is a "good basis for a bill," but it
needs a lot of work, and he would |ike to appoint a subcommttee
to look at it wth Representative Ekins as Chair and
Representati ves Dahl strom and G uenberg. He encourages anybody
else on the commttee to participate. He asked Representative

Elkins to notify others of any neetings of the subcommttee.
[ HB 168 was hel d over.]

HB 167- DEATH CERTI FI CATE FOR DECEASED VETERAN

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 167, "An Act relating to providing a death
certificate for a deceased veteran w thout cost."”

SARAH HOCK, Staff to Representative Max G uenberg, Al aska State
Legislature, said HB 167 provides death certificates for a

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 15- March 17, 2005



deceased veteran w thout costs to next of kin. The bill is
nmodel ed after an Arizona statute.

2:26: 06 PM
EDWARD C. FERMAN, Juneau, said he is a Veteran of Foreign Wirs,

and veterans are not being taken care. He said the conmttee is
doing a good job, but there are a lot of things that are not

cover ed. He said a soldier cane back from the @lf with a
crushed leg and was told she could not get the treatnent she
needed. "We want to take care of our veterans," he said.

PH LLIP M TCHELL, Section Chief, Bureau of Vital Statistics,
Division of Public Health, Departnment of Health and Social
Servi ces, suggested a clear definition of a veteran for HB 167.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his staff will do that.
2:31: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it will be the sane | anguage found
in the conmpanion bill HB 166. He offered Amendnent 1 as
defining a veteran as the nmeaning given in HB 166.

Hearing no objection, Amendnent 1 was so noved.

JERRY BEALE, Director, Ofice of Veteran Affairs, Departnent of
Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs, said HB 166 provides a very basic
service. It would add a benefit to the famlies.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA noved to report CSHB 167, version 24-
LS0605\G as anmended  out of commttee wth i ndi vi dual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. Hearing no
objection, CSHB 167(M.V) was noved out of the House Speci al
Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

HB 166- VETERANS' MEMORI AL CERTI FI CATES

2:35: 07 PM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 166, "An Act relating to a program to honor a
deceased veteran's mlitary service."

SARAH HOCK, Staff to Representative Max G uenberg, Al aska State
Legislature, said HB 166 is nodeled after the presidential

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 16- March 17, 2005



menorial certificate program which issues death certificates of
honor. The CS clarifies the definition of an Al aska resident.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt CSHB 166 version F as a
wor ki ng draft.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked if it is only for those that die in
Al aska.

M5. HOOK said it is for any resident of Al aska no natter where
he or she dies.

2:37:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS noted displeasure wth excluding any
Al aska veteran who has to give up residency against his or her
wi shes in the |ast stages of life.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would wthdraw Version F and
nove to adopt Version G to include past Al aska residents.

2:38:42 PM
Hearing no opposition, Version Gis adopted.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HB 166, |abeled
24L.S0602\G  Bul | ock, 3/16/05, out of conmmttee wth individua
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. Hearing no
objection, CSHB 166(MV) was nmoved out of the House Speci al
Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

2:40: 40 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 2:41:04 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -17- March 17, 2005



